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Jim Bell is nothing if not determined.
Just seven months after being released from prison, the 42-year-old convicted felon whom the U.S. government once dubbed a techno-
terrorist is back in jail, this time for allegedly trying to intimidate IRS agents.
Bell was arrested last Friday, a week after the IRS and U.S. Marshals raided the home he shares with his parents in Vancouver, Washington.
He has been charged with two counts of violating federal stalking laws.
Bell was arraigned Monday before Magistrate Judge J. Kelly Arnold in Tacoma, Washington and is being held without bail at the Federal
Detention Center near Seattle.
In a series of telephone interviews in the days leading up to his arrest, Bell claimed he was compiling evidence of a government conspiracy to
conduct illegal surveillance against him and unlawfully bug his home. "One guess is that I was getting a little too close to these people," Bell
said.
Bell, a cypherpunk who pleaded guilty in July 1997 to interfering with IRS agents and using false Social Security numbers, is best known for
a scheme he popularized that would use encryption, anonymity and digital cash to bring about the annihilation of all forms of government.
He even gave it a catchy title: "Assassination Politics."
When the feds searched Bell's home earlier this month, according to a one-page attachment to the search warrant, agents were looking for
"items which refer to Assassination Politics." They also hoped to find items that "contain the names, home addresses, or other information
relating to current or past BATF, IRS, or other government or law enforcement employees."
Bell says that he's put his Assassination Politics proposal on hold. But he acknowledges that he showed up at the homes of suspected BATF
agents and has done DMV searches on their names -- all in an effort to let them know that surveillance can be done in both directions.
"The double standard here is simply incredible," Bell said. "They simply don't like the idea that Jim Bell can simply look through a few
databases, find one of their people, and publish the name on the Internet. They hate that."
"They're trying to make it look like I've been intimidating them. They've been intimidating me," Bell said. "I wasn't all that happy before, but
I'm hopping mad ... if you think this is going to stop me, baloney."
Bell also said that he believed the Feds had illegally installed a tracking device in his car that would receive GPS signals and transmit the
vehicle's location. He said he had contacted a security firm and asked them to locate it.
His attorney, Robert Leen of Seattle, said Bell's next court hearing is scheduled at 3:30 pm for November 22 before Judge Arnold and that
the government is asking that he be held without bail.
"Mr. Bell's preliminary hearing is scheduled for the week of November 27, 2000. At that time Judge Arnold will determine whether there is
probable cause to believe that Mr. Bell committed the crimes charged in the criminal complaint," Leen said in an email message to Wired
News.
The 16-page complaint sworn by Philip Scott, an agent for the Treasury Department's Inspector General for Tax Administration, says Bell
was a former "member of a militia organization" and had crossed state lines to track down information about federal agents including one
named Jeff Gordon who had participated in previous prosecutions of Bell.
The complaint says that when agents raided Bell's home, they found notes on a women named Barbara Gordon who was married to a man
named Jeff Gordon, with a son named Joshua. "Jeff and Barbara Gordon of Tualatin are not related to Special Agent Gordon," the
complaint says.
It also alleges that Bell sent out an email message titled "Say Goodnight to Joshua" -- a reference to the Gordon's son -- on October 23.
Bell has been charged with violating 18 USC 2281, which prohibits some forms of stalking and intimidating the family of a federal agent.
"Jim had said he was going out ... about 8:30 Friday night. When he didn't come back around 10 p.m. they got a call from the police saying
he had been arrested for stalking," said Milo Wadlin, Bell's brother-in-law who lives in Portland, Oregon.
U.S. News and World Report featured Bell as part of a cover story on terrorism. The story said that when agents raided his home, they
found "volatile solvents, explosives ingredients, sodium cyanide, nitric acid, and disopropyl fluorophosphate -- one of several ingredients
that, if properly mixed, form nerve gas -- all in a residential neighborhood."
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